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RE:  Calculation of Gas Royalties 
 
 
The Board of University and School Lands (Board) manages land, minerals and proceeds as 
trustee on behalf of permanent trust funds. This responsibility is for the exclusive benefit of 
constitutionally identified beneficiaries with much of the income used to help fund North Dakota 
schools and institutions. The Board also manages sovereign minerals for the State of North 
Dakota. 
 
This letter addresses three important issues that have arisen with respect to the Board’s 
collection of royalties under the terms of its standard oil and gas lease (Board’s Lease). First, 
the Board has a fiduciary responsibility when it enters into an oil and gas lease and it must 
adhere to the terms that relate to the collection of oil and gas royalties. Second, the terms of the 
Board’s Lease relating to the payment of royalties have remained unchanged for almost 
40 years. Lastly, as a matter of fairness, the Board must enforce the terms of its lease 
consistently with each lessee. 
 
The Board operates in a fiduciary role when it offers its leases at auction for the right to produce 
oil and gas from trust or State mineral lands. Through these auctions, lessees compete for the 
opportunity to enter into the Board’s Lease, the terms of which are available to each potential 
bidder prior to the auction. The current version of the Board’s Lease has been in effect since 
1979. By its terms, the Board’s Lease includes the Board’s Oil and Gas Rules. Operators who 
produce the oil and gas under these leases calculate the royalties due on behalf of the Board’s 
lessees and are required to do so in accordance with the terms of the Board’s Lease. We must 
ensure all operators are paying all royalties due under this lease.   

 
The Board’s Lease requires gas royalties to be calculated “based on gross production or the 
market value thereof, at the option of the lessor, such value to be based on the gross proceeds 
of sale where such sale constitutes an arm’s length transaction.” Correspondingly, oil royalties 
are based on the greater of: “1) the highest posted price, plus premium, if any, paid for oil, 
condensate, distillate, or other liquid hydrocarbons, respectively, of a like type and gravity for the 
field where produced and when run, or 2) the highest market price thereof paid for the area 
where produced and when run, or 3) the gross proceeds of sale….” 
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Recent Department of Trust Lands’ oil and gas audits found that some operators have been 
improperly calculating gas royalties under the Board’s Lease. Because of contrary 
interpretations of the Board’s Lease, guidance was requested from the Office of the Attorney 
General. The resulting letter (attached) verifies that the Board’s lessees are not allowed to 
deduct any expenses from the payment of gas royalties.    
 
This clarification is neither a change in the Department’s interpretation of the Board’s Lease nor 
a new policy proposal, but merely a reiteration of the policy that has been in effect since 1979. 
Our records indicate that you are a lessee or submit royalties under the Board’s Lease. The 
letter is shared with you, and all lessees and operators, to explain the gas royalty provisions in 
the Board’s Lease and to provide an analysis of applicable case law.   
 
Under the gross proceeds royalty provision, the lessee may not reduce royalty payments for 
expenses incurred prior to the sale of oil and gas. Royalties must be paid on the gross proceeds 
of sale, which is the total of the gross production multiplied by the sales price at the point of sale.1 
Expenses incurred in connection with the production and sale of the hydrocarbons must be borne 
by the lessee, including any percentage of proceeds deductions.   
 
Many operators are currently paying gas royalties properly. This clarification is sent, in part, to 
provide fairness to these lessees and to offer guidance to lessees who are paying gas royalties 
improperly, on the proper method of payment. Applicable penalties and interest may be 
assessed on underpaid royalties.   
 
On behalf of the Board, it is the Department’s fiduciary responsibility to ensure that the trusts 
and State are appropriately compensated per the Board’s Lease terms and that it is enforcing 
these terms consistently with all lessees. I reiterate that there has been no change to the Board’s 
Lease pertaining to the payment of royalties based on gross proceeds since 1979.    
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 
Lance D. Gaebe 
 
 
Enclosure:  Office of Attorney General Letter regarding gas royalty payments (March 8, 2017) 

                                                
1 As noted herein, oil royalties are based on gross proceeds if this is the highest of three values. 










